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Shelby County      

Tennessee                           Mark H. Luttrell, Jr., Mayor 
 

 

 

 

Questions & Answers 

Issued: February 26, 2016 

 

RFP #16-002-44 

Employee Assistance Program (EAP)  

(Human Resources – Employee Benefits) 

 

 

TO ALL PROSPECTIVE BIDDERS: 

 

The following questions were submitted by potential vendors.  Please find our response in 

the table that follows:    
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Shelby County Government EAP 
RFP##16-002-44  

Questions and Answers  

RFP Section 
Reference 

Q# Questions for clarification 

  Cigna 
N/A 1.  Please provide the most recent 12 months of EAP utilization experience 

for Shelby County Government. 
  Utilization reports are provided – see attached. In some years there is 

only partial year utilization information. This is all the information the 
County can provide at this time. 

N/A 2.  Although we have some flexibility on plan design, we don't currently offer 
a plan with unlimited EAP visits.  Would Shelby County consider a plan 
with limits, and if so, should we submit those as deviations with our 
response? 

  Yes. The current model does have an “unlimited visit model” for the 
outpatient treatment provided by EAP; however, our Mental/Behavioral 
Health Services provided through the health plan consists of a limited 
amount of visits (26 visits) 

RFP workbook – 
see Required 
Doc checklist tab 

3.  This section asks for a “Guarantee/Comfort Letter from you ultimate 
parent company (Required only if your company is a subsidiary or affiliate 
of a larger entity and your are providing your parent company’s financials 
in response to this RFP).”   
 
Which “financials” is this referring to?  The Standard and Poor’s letter?  
Something else? 

  The comfort letter is to come from the parent organization. If you are 
quoting the financials of the Parent company, a comfort letter is required 
attesting to that fact. Please re-read the request and follow the 
instructions given. 

 4.  Shelby County Employee Assistance Program RFP – Required Documents 
Checklist, Item 1. Asks for a Redlined Contract.  Our Legal Department 
would like to know if you can provide a contract Template for them to 
redline 

  Standard contract language is included – see attached.  
N/A 5.  Does the EAP participate in open enrollment meetings or health fairs? If 

yes, how many hours were provided last year? 
  There is currently no participation in OE meetings and the County does 

not typically hold health fairs; however, they may have this need in the 
future and would look to your proposed offering to include options such 
as this. 

N/A 6.  Does the EAP get involved in your drug free workplace policy or DOT 
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RFP Section 
Reference 

Q# Questions for clarification 

policy? If yes, how many cases were provided last year? 
  No 

N/A 7.  How long has Concern been the County EAP provider? 
  Approximately 10 years. 
N/A 8.  Why were there no legal or financial presenting problems last year? This 

is normally a very active part of the EAP. 

  The County has provided utilization reports with this RFP. Please glean 
what information you can from the reports to assist you in providing a 
quote for the requested services.  

N/A 9.  Does the County have a wellness program? If yes what services are 
included and does it integrate with the EAP? 

  The County has wellness initiatives through their medical vendor, Cigna, 
which does not coordinate with the current EAP program. It is expected 
that the new vendor will integrate with SCG’s onsite clinic and additional 
wellness initiatives – just how this integration will look is yet to be 
determined. 

N/A 10.  What was the average number of sessions per clinical EAP case last year? 

  Utilization report provided – see attached. 
N/A 11.  What work life resource and referral services are currently provided by 

the EAP? 
  It is expected that each vendor will propose a program consistent with 

industry best practices for the County’s consideration.  

N/A 12.  Please provide the current rate and a rate history throughout the contract 
term. 

  Current rate is $1.08 PEPM. Rate has been in a guarantee since 2011. 
QNR #31 13.  What is a Personal Health Record? 

  This is an electronic tool that people can use to collect, track and share 
past and current information about their health or the health of someone 
in their care. 

QNR #33 14.  How many hours of training/orientation/educational seminars/health fair 
participation are included in the current contract per year? 

  Please provide an adequate bid on the services requested in the RFP. 
Shelby county will not provide this information but rather is interested in 
understanding what each vendor is proposing. 

QNR #33 15.  How many total hours of trainings/educational 
workshops/orientations/health fairs were utilized in each of the last three 
(3) years?  

  Shelby county will not provide this information but rather is interested in 
understanding what each vendor is proposing. The County has provided 
utilization reports with this RFP. Please glean what information you can 
from the reports to assist you in providing a quote for the requested 
services. 

N/A 16.  Please provide copies of 2013 and 2014 EAP utilization reports.   

  Utilization reports are provided – see attached. In some years there is 
only partial year utilization information. This is all the information the 
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RFP Section 
Reference 

Q# Questions for clarification 

County can provide at this time. 
N/A 17.  How many face-to-face EAP sessions were utilized in each of the last three 

(3) years? What has been the average number of sessions per case in each 
of the last three (3) years? 

  The County has provided utilization reports with this RFP. Please glean 
what information you can from the reports to assist you in providing a 
quote for the requested services and propose what you think would be of 
value to the County. . 

N/A 18.  How many hours of Critical Incident Stress Debriefings (CISDs) are 
included in the current contract per year? 

  Shelby county will not provide this information but rather is interested in 
understanding what each vendor is proposing. The County has provided 
utilization reports with this RFP. Please glean what information you can 
from the reports to assist you in providing a quote for the requested 
services. 

N/A 19.  How many CISDs were utilized in each of the last three (3) years? 
  None; however the County would like these services included in the 

proposal for future consideration. 
N/A 20.  Please provide insight into the condition of the workforce. Are there 

specific issues facing your workforce (i.e. stress, morale, etc.) and HR? 
Have there been any major events in the last year (i.e. reductions in force, 
critical incidents, etc.)?  

  The County has no knowledge of any specific issues in the population and 
has had no major occurrences in the recent past. 

N/A 21.  Is your EAP Helpline currently answered by customer service 
representatives or by clinical personnel?  

  Clinical personnel. 

N/A 22.  Are legal, financial and daily living work/life services currently a part of 
your EAP program? 

  Yes. 
QNR #33J 23.  Please provide information regarding safety workshops and PTSD support 

(type of training, length, hours provided each year, etc.).  

  SCG has not hosted workshops or had a need for group support in the 
past; however, it is expected that your quote will include some 
recommendations for the County’s consideration. 

QNR #55 24.  Does the County have on-site health clinics? If yes, how does the EAP 
currently support and interact with the clinics?  

  An On-site health clinic is planned for 2017. It is expected that the new 
EAP vendor will integrate on some level with the clinic.   

N/A 25.  Provide an employee zip code census so we may conduct a GeoAccess 
Report to check provider coverage.  

  This information was provided as an attachment to the RFP.  Please revisit 
the RFP package. 

N/A 26.  Are eligibility files required for the EAP?  

  No 
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RFP Section 
Reference 

Q# Questions for clarification 

Fee exhibit 27.  Please confirm that the County currently has an unlimited visit model in 
place. Are vendors required to bid on the entire bundled and unbundled 
visit model options stated on the fee worksheet? 

  The current model does have an “unlimited visit model” for the 
outpatient treatment provided by EAP; however, our Mental/Behavioral 
Health Services provided through the health plan consists of a limited 
amount of visits (26 visits) Yes, please respond to the worksheet as 
instructed.  

N/A 28.  Is there a locally-owned small business enterprise utilization goal for this 
contract?   

  There is no locally-owned small business (LOSB) utilization goal 
requirement for this contract; however, Shelby County Government has a 
20% LOSB goal for all of its procurements. 

RFP pg. 22 - 24 29.  Please clarify what constitutes the Comprehensive Response. Is this our 
response to the minimum requirements, questionnaire and required 
documents? Likewise, is the information requested in the RFP pages 22-
24 in addition to the minimum requirements, questionnaire and required 
documents? 

  A comprehensive response will include all the key items listed in Section 
XI.C.1-6. of the RFP. Completion of all the separate attachments included 
with this RFP, as listed in the ‘Introduction’, will satisfy the requirement of 
item #2a of the same section. 

N/A 30.  Are there specific areas of enhancement you are seeking at this time? 
  Enhancements to the program were outlined in the RFP document. Please 

feel free to offer best practice enhancements and other innovations as 
you deem valuable to the County’s EAP program.  

N/A 31.  If there are no specific areas of enhancement sought, can you define a 
reason for why you are requesting the RFP at this time, other than 
required to do so? 

  The RFP has been released in accordance with County Government 
requirements. 

N/A 32.  Given the length of relationship with the current provider, can you share 
the reason for conducting an RFP at this time?   

  The RFP has been released in accordance with County Government 
requirements. 

N/A 33.  What is the current PEPM rate? 
  Current rate is $1.08 PEPM. Rate has been effective since 2011. 

N/A 34.  What was the total dollar spend for the EAP in 2015? 
  Please assume headcount and rate provided on an annual basis. 
N/A 35.  What was the total dollar spend for the EAP in 2014? 

  Please assume headcount and rate provided on an annual basis.  
N/A 36.  Is Shelby County currently receiving Work-Life Services, i.e. child care and 

elder care consultation and referral? 
  Yes. 

N/A 37.  Is Shelby County currently receiving Legal Consultation Services, i.e. 30-
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RFP Section 
Reference 

Q# Questions for clarification 

minute consultation with an attorney beyond the consultation; attorney 
services offered at a 25% discount? 

  Legal consultation is currently provided. 
N/A 38.  Is Shelby County currently receiving Financial Consultation Services, i.e. 

telephone-based financial advisory services provided by qualified financial 
planners? 

  Financial services are currently provided. 

N/A 39.  Can you provide the number of training hours provided in 2015? How 
many of those hours were provided in-person? How many were provided 
via web? 

  See attached utilization reports. 
N/A 40.  Can you provide the number of training hours provided in 2014? How 

many of those hours were provided in-person? How many were provided 
via web? 

  See attached utilization reports. 

N/A 41.  How many training hours are included annually in the current contract? 
  See attached utilization reports. 
N/A 42.  Can you provide the number of orientation hours provided in 2015? How 

many of those were provided in-person? How many were provided via 
web? 

  See attached utilization reports. 

N/A 43.  Can you provide the number of orientation hours provided in 2014? How 
many of those were provided in-person? How many were provided via 
web? 

  See attached utilization reports. 
N/A 44.  How many orientation hours are included annually in the current 

contract? 
  See attached utilization reports. It is expected that each vendor will 

propose what you deem is appropriate for this group. 

N/A 45.  Do the Shelby County services currently include Critical Incident Response 
(CIR) or Critical Incident Stress Management (CISM) services? If so, how 
many hours of response are include in the agreement?  Or are these type 
of services provided on a fee for service basis? 

a. How many Critical Incident events were provided in 2015? 
b. How many Critical Incident events were provided in 2014? 
c. How many hours of Critical Incident support were provided in 

2015? 
d. How many hours of Critical Incident support were provided in 

2014? 
  See attached utilization reports. The County expects each vendor to 

propose what it deems is appropriate for this group. 
N/A 46.  Within your employee population, how many are non-safety related 

employees?  How many are public safety personnel? 
  38% of the County’s employee population is public safety personnel. 

MR Attachment 47.  Can you elaborate on ‘L.’ with regard to how the current program may 
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RFP Section 
Reference 

Q# Questions for clarification 

integrate with the onsite clinic and other care management 
programs/partners? 

  The onsite clinic will be opening in late 2016 or early 2017. The County 
does not have experience integrating EAP with the clinic at this time. The 
current EAP does not integrate with the health plan’s wellness initiatives 
at this time but It is expected that the quoting vendor will provide 
recommendations to integrate both wellness and the clinic.  

QNR #9 48.  What percentage of member calls is monitored?  Are you referring to 
employees calls directly into the EAP?  What is your definition of 
monitored?  If monitored implies “recorded”, and an organization does 
not “record” calls, would this prevent them from being awarded the 
contract? 

  This question relates to your Quality Assurance process.  It is expected for 
that each quoting vendor will provide statistics regarding your QA 
process/results with regard to calls coming into your call center from the 
members you serve. If calls are not monitored or recorded, please explain 
how you assure quality. 

QNR #31 49.  Please define what you believe a Personal Health Record would 
contain/provide.  Also, is this currently made available? 

  This is an electronic tool that people can use to collect, track and share 
past and current information about their health or the health of someone 
in their care. 

QNR #36 50.  Is “Health Coaching” currently provided within the EAP?  Who provides 
the coaching?  Would this be considered “Wellness” Health Coaching? 

a. Is post hospitalization currently provided as part of the EAP?  Can 
you provide in what context?  i.e. – child birth, broken leg, 
appendix, etc., or just for hospitalization related to a mental 
health concern? 

  Health Coaching is a wellness component provided through the health 
plan carrier (Cigna). 

QNR #44 - 47 51.  Is coordination amongst these programs something that is currently in 
place?  Can you share the names of the vendors that provide these 
services? 

  The EAP does not coordinate with the current wellness programs; 
however, the County may expect, in the future, coordination with onsite 
clinic as well as the wellness program. 

RFP page 2 52.  Page 2 of the RFP document indicates proposals should be sent 
electronically, but then it also states where hard copies should be sent.  
Do we have the option of selected which format we elect, or are we 
required to submit both ways. 

  Each bidder is required to submit their comprehensive response via email 
and in hard copy. Both must be received by the County by the deadline 
stated within the RFP. 

RFP page 4 53.  If an organization does not have a financial rating from A.M. Best, 
Standard & Poors, and/or Moody’s would this make them ineligible for 
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RFP Section 
Reference 

Q# Questions for clarification 

reward, or can they provide some other level of financial documentation? 
  Not being rated by the major rating agencies does not make a bidding 

firm ineligible or automatically disqualified. Bidders may include financial 
statements for the past 3 years in lieu of financial ratings – ONLY IF YOUR 
FIRM IS NOT RATED by these agencies. 

N/A 54.  What is the reason Shelby County is out to bid for EAP? 
  The RFP has been released in accordance with County Government 

requirements. 

N/A 55.  Is there anything in the current program you would like to see improved? 
  Enhancements have been outlined in the RFP document. The County is 

interested in understanding what each vendor would propose for its 
members or what innovations you may have that the County might take 
advantage of. 

N/A 56.  What is the current PEPM or annual premium? 
  $1.08 PEPM 

Fee exhibit 57.  The RFP mentions unlimited sessions – are these paid for all by the county 
or are there a certain number paid for by the county and then the 
member pays for the remainder (most plans I see  cover 3, 5. 7 sessions, 
etc. and then the member pays for any beyond those) 

  The current model does have an “unlimited visit model” for the 
outpatient treatment provided by EAP; however, Mental/Behavioral 
Health Services provided through the health plan consists of a limited 
amount of visits (26 visits).  

Fee exhibit 58.  We can certainly include training hours for seminars – how many hours 
would you like for us to include? 

  Provide your recommendation. 

N/A 59.  Please confirm you would like for us to quote our Work-Life services as 
well.  I saw mention of it in the questionnaire. 

  Yes. 
 60.  Please clarify what is Title VI requirements as noted in question #6 of the 

minimum requirements: Attest that you adhere to all Title VI 
requirements and provide proof/documentation if necessary. 
 

  Title VI, as amended, is outlined in section H of the RFP – see pages 8 
through 10. Please provide a statement of your compliance in your 
proposal response. 

 61.  Many of the cells in the attachments are below the 200 word count and 
do not allow us to provide sufficient information to answer questions. Can 
you please provide an updated document? 

  No. Adequate space has been allotted for the type of responses desired 
within the questionnaire. Please provide a succinct response to these 
questions.  

 


